
AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANG GROUP  

 

TENDER FOR THE PROVISION OF GLOBAL TRAVEL 

AGENCY SERVICES FOR THEAFRICAN DEVELOPMENT 

BANK 

 

ADB/RFP/CHGS/2020/0014 

 

SUMMARY OF QUESTIONS/ANSWERS DURING THE PRE-BID 

CONFERENCE HELD ON MONDAY 27 JANUARY 2020 AT THE BANK  

HEAD QUARTERS FROM 10 AM TO 11:00 AM AND OTHER 

CLARIFICATIONS IN THE CONTEXT OF THE TENDER 

 

The purpose of the conference was to provide clarification and answer the 

questions raised by pre-selected bidders. It is important for potential bidders to 

ask as many questions as necessary to ensure a successful process. 
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 Questions from Bidders  Responses/Clarifications provided by the Bank  

  

 BIDDING PROCESS – QUESTIONS 1 TO 11 

1.  What is the turnover requirement for the tender? The turnover requirement is an average of USD 5 

million within the last three years. More details are 

provided on page 40 of the RFP document. 

2.  Can you give more clarity on the turnover since 

the definition varies depending on the country? 

In some countries including Cote d’Ivoire the 

turnover indicated in the financial statements 

does not include ticket sales. 

Considering that in some countries, Travel Agencies do 

not report BSP sales in their financial statements, the 

Bank will consider the BSP figures for the turnover 

requirement.  This means that the requirement to issue 

3,000 tickets is no longer necessary to prove. 

An amendment to the RFP will be issued to that effect. 

3.  The Bank intends to retain 5% of the contract 

value until the end of the defect liability period.  

Will this be based amount specified on an 

annual basis of EUR 25 million, or will it be a 

withholding on the transaction fees paid to the 

TMC?  

This provision of the tender will be removed through an 

amendment. 

4.  Should the Travel agency or its partner have 

legal presence in Côte d’Ivoire? 

 

Does the travel agent presence in Abidjan have 

to be a LEGAL presence? 

 

Is it possible for the legal presence in Abidjan to 

be through a general service company or does it 

have to be a Travel agency with a Local Ivorian 

IATA code? 

 

 

For this new tender, the qualification criteria include a 

presence in Côte d’Ivoire, either through an office in 

Abidjan or a partnership with a travel agency operating 

in Abidjan.  This is necessary for the contract 

implementation.  

 

The Travel agency or its partner should be legally 

registered in Côte d’Ivoire. In your proposal you should 

indicate the plans/steps you intend to take to be either 

based or represented in Abidjan, Cote d’Ivoire. 

5.  a) Should the partner be a company registered in 

a member country of the ADB?  

 

 

b) Partners vs JVs – we do not operate JV but 

through a partnership agreement, the below 

clause requirement doesn’t allow for partnership 

agreement? Can we still participate? 

 

 

Yes. As provided for article 4.1 Instructions to Bidders 

“Other Forms of Partnerships” are accepted.  The 

requirement is to provide full details of the relationship 

(a copy of the contract) as well as nominating a legal 

representative and Power of Attorney. The eligibility 

requirement applies to all the partners. 

All partners shall be jointly and severally liable for the 

performance of any resulting contract.  

 

6.  For the purposes of this bid, can the “majority 

capital” eligibility requirement be deemed to be 

determined as a total across all JV participants 

(such that, for example, if the capital of two of 

three JV participants is wholly owned by a 

national of a member state then the JV as a 

whole is deemed eligible). 

 

The eligibility requirements apply to all members of a 

JV. 

7.  Referring to Eligibility requirement and 

'Partnership' - does the above also apply to 

Member Countries and non-Member countries?  

If a bidder has a Partnership in Ivory Coast with 

a locally established agency and they win/ 

contract with the Bank do the other Partnership 

Yes.  
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countries have to be Membership countries 

also? 

 

8.  BSP report – since this data incudes other 

client names and confidential, can we just 

provide same (numbers volume and 

tickets/transactions) rather the BSP volume for 

each country. 

 

All information submitted in the context of this tender is 

treated with utmost confidentiality. The requirement is 

for the Bank to gage whether the bidder meets the 

requirement for the number of tickets issued and the 

turnover of an average USD 5,000,000 for the last 3 

years. 

 

9.  In terms of the agreement ownership, if the 

agreement is under a global network, that also 

has a partner in Ivory Coast – who will be the 

main contractor? You mentioned that the main 

contract holder should be from a member 

country, as a global TMC our HQ is outside of 

Africa – please advise? 

 

The main contractor should be from a member country. 

Other non-Africa Countries are members of the Bank; 

please see the list on page 64 of the RFP documents. 

 

10.  Meetings and Events – TMC to pre-pay on 

behalf of the Bank. How does the Bank plan to 

pay for this additional service, fixed fee or %? 

 

 

The requirement is for the TMC to book hotel 

accommodation, negotiate conditions such minimum or 

no penalty no show, pre-pay for about 600 participants. 

In addition, the TMC will also manage room allocation. 

Bidders are to propose. 

11.  Please provide a breakdown of the 2019 data of 

the travel volumes: air/hotel, etc. 

 

Please refer to appendix A for data. 

 LODGED CARD  -QUESTIONS 12 TO 15 

12.  Will the Bank deploy a card? You mentioned 

AirPlus, have you had discussions with AMEX 

or other providers? You mentioned that here 

you want to be guided by the TMC, does the 

Bank have the resources and framework to 

deploy a card program for all its travellers? 

 

 

 

 

 

Ideally, yes. The Bank would like to have a lodged card 

implemented and expects the selected Travel agency to 

assist in the process.  

So far, the Bank had discussions with HSBC, its current 

contractor for Corporate cards. The Bank did not have 

discussions with Amex or any other provider of UATP 

cards.  

The Bank has a Corporate Credit Card Program with 

HSBC.  However, implementation of the lodged card 

has not been successful. 

What the Bank is looking for is a UATP type lodged 

card for tickets issuance. 

13.  It was mentioned in the bidders’ conference that 

the AFDB had local legal challenges to 

implement the lodge card: how would it be 

possible for the new GTMC to implement the 

Those challenges are with a specific provider, AIRPLUS. 
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lodge card if its legal entity has to be in Cote 

d’Ivoire? 

 

14.  How does the process work for the lodged card? The Bank will sign contract with a card provider.  

When a ticket is issued a card is charged. 

15.  Due to financial regulations in Ivory Coast, is 

the AFDB open to the idea of a Lodged Card 

being used to issue tickets from different 

countries which have AFDB presence (are 

member countries)? 

The Bank is open to the idea, which requires further 

examination with the selected TMC and the lodged card 

provider. 

 SAP CONCUR- QUESTIONS 16 TO 18 

16.  Will the Bank use SAP concur throughout the 

Bank 

Yes, the aim is to deploy SAP concur Bank wide 

17.  SAP Concur – in-country service or hubbed? 

Has the Bank also deployed Concur Expense?  

On the call you mentioned that the bank has a 

direct deal with Concur and has already started 

building site with SAP Concur but now need to 

integrate TMC.  

Since the deal has already been finalised, will 

the Bank pay for the additional 

implementation/integration cost of the OBT?  

 

The system is centralized.  

Bank has signed contract with SAP Concur to 

implement SAP Concur Request, Travel & Expense. 

The implementation for Online Booking Tool will be 

done with the new TMC. The integration will be 

handled jointly by the Bank, SAP Concur and the TMC.  

Bank will pay for the implementation/Integration cost. 

 

18.  Approval workflow process – please provide 

approval workflow process? You mentioned 

that this will be finished before the travel 

agency receives/no additional approval from the 

AfDB but you require the agency to check the 

PNR before issuing which will require extra 

work from the TMC and affect pricing. Please 

clarify?  

 

The workflow process is as follows:  

For Online bookings: The traveler creates the request 

with the possible flight/hotel option. When this option is 

approved by the manager, the PNR will automatically 

move to the agency queue for ticketing. Then ticket will 

be issued and forwarded to the traveler.  

 

For Offline bookings, the travel agency receives the 

request by email. The agency proposes options as per the 

Bank travel policy and communicate with the traveler. 

Once agreed, ticket is issued. 

 

 SERVICE CONFIGURATION- QUESTIONS 19 TO 37 

19.  Is the Travel agency allowed to have an implant 

office inside the Bank’s offices ? 

 

Yes. The service configuration for the selected Global 

Travel Management company, is an implant within the 

Bank’s premises. 

20.  Will the AfDB issue payments to the Travel 

agency in any local currency or in XOF? 

The Bank pays in any designated account and 

currency.  
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21.  What is the estimated volume in 2019 of booking 

for hotel accommodations? 

Please provide a breakdown of the 2019 data of 

the travel volumes: air/hotel etc. 

 

In the current process, for the most part, travelers make 

their own bookings for hotel accommodation. Therefore, 

no data is available. Going forward, the Bank wants the 

selected travel agency to assume this responsibility. 

For air data, please refer Appendix A. 

.  

22.  Consolidation – will the Bank firstly 

MANDATE the exclusive use of the appointed 

TMC?  

 

The Bank mandates the use of its appointed TMC for all 

travel arrangement across all Bank offices to achieve 

consolidation. 

However, there is no provision for exclusivity in Bank 

contracts.   

23.  Travel policy  - please share the current policy? 

 

Yes., a copy will be commutated with the responses to 

bidders’ questions. 

24.  Payments  – will it be in-country or 

decentralised (in-country)? The answer was not 

clear during the call.   

 

Payment will be centralized and paid to any account 

designated by the selected TMC. 

 

25.  Payment terms – the Bank requests 30 days, as 

you are aware ticketing cycle is 14 days in most 

member countries, can tickets be processed via 

CC or by or before 15 days to align to the BSP 

cycle?  

 

The Bank is looking to implement a lodged card service 

with the selected TMC, in part to address this matter. 

 

26.  Accommodation – will this be on the credit 

card as well? Will the Bank fully deploy a card 

program for this?  

 

 

The Bank will consider this matter with the selected 

TMC. 

27.  Data Clarifications 

Please provide volume information by country 

for each of the following categories 

- Domestic Air 

- Regional Air 

- International Air 

- Hotel 

- Car 

- Domestic Rail 

- International Rail 

- Air – low cost carrier 

 

 

This information is not available the country level. The 

volume of domestic air is very limited. 

 

No data is available of hotel bookings, as this was not 

centralized in the past. 

 

 Based on historical data, the use of rail is also very 

limited and happens mostly in air/rail itinerary 

combinations. 

 

At the time, the Bank is not using low cost carrier, but 

may consider it in the future. 

28.  Please provide the number of transactions 

by country for each of the following 

categories: 

- Domestic Air 

- Regional Air 

- International Air 

- Hotel 

- Car 

- Domestic Rail 

- International Rail 

- Air – low cost carrier 

 

Please refer to answer for question 27 and see Appendix 

A for available data. 

29.  How many of your Hotel/Car bookings are 

made with Air bookings (in percentages)? 

No data available on this. 

 

The OBT has not been deployed yet. 
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What are your current online adoption rates by 

country? 

For each country in scope, approximately how 

many of your online transactions will be agent 

assisted (touched)? How many of them do 

expect to be completed without agent assistance 

(touchless)? 

 

30.  What are your current percentage rates for 

refunds and/or voids? 

 

About 10% of tickets issued. 

31.  Service / Configuration Questions: 

Should pricing be based on Bundled (hotel/car 

booked with air at no additional charge) or 

Menu (hotel/car charged separately from air 

transactions)? 

Countries is scope; kindly confirm the 

countries in scope for this RFP? Please refer to 

the attached list. 

 

Fees should be provided in menu with air separate from 

the rest. 

 

 

The Bank has office in over 34 countries within Africa 

including 5 Regional offices with a staff count of about 

80 each, and are located in Johannesburg, Nairobi, Tunis, 

and Yaoundé. The Bank also has a representation office 

in Tokyo, Japan. 

32.  Whose financial data / figures should be 

provided in the documentation, Main contractor 

Partner in Ivory Coast or a combination of both 

etc? 

 

The financial data of the qualified bidder. 

33.  The financial standings figures can be a 

combination of the Partner agency and the 

agency in Ivory Coast to be an average of or 

greater than $5m?  If it's the latter only then 

why are you asking for BSP average sales of 

less at $3m?   

 

Since the Bank is now considering the Annual Turnover 

the same as BSP, the EUR 3 million in ticket sales is no 

longer necessary. 

34.  Is it permitted to visit the AFDB head office in 

Abidjan in the next 10 days to get an insight 

into current operations and infrastructure?  

 

Any potential bidder can visit AFDB head office with 

prior notice. 

35.  Is AFDB VAT exempt Yes. 

36.  In case an implant office is allowed, can this be 

the legally registered office in Abidjan? Or will 

a separate office be required for the legal 

registration 

No. As per local regulation, the TMC should have an 

office different from the implant. 

37.  Are bidders allowed to their own pricing 

template. The template provided in the bid 

document is limited in comparison to the 

services that encompass business travel 

services (TMC services 

 

All fees shown in USD 

Bidders are allowed to propose alternative compensation 

method and use their own of the Price Schedule. Bidder 

should take into consideration that they shall also submit 

proposals according to the Bank’s Price Schedule 

submitted in the RFP. 
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Air Fees 

Domestic Air 

Regional Air 

International Air 

Refund Air 

Rail Fees 

Domestic Rail  

International Rail 

Refund Rail 

Hotel Fees 

Hotel (GDS) - Booked with air transaction 

Hotel only  (GDS) - without air transaction 

Hotel only - without air transaction Via TS Hotel 

Hotel voucher payment/billback 

Etc………………………………………………………………… 

 

 

*** 
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APPENDIX A 

 

  2019 

Type of Ticket 
N TIKT 

Total Cost of 

TIKT in EUR 

Business Class 8376 17 534 663 

Economy Class 10680 7 407 306 

Ticket 

Exchange 1900 431 452 

First Class 16 185 749 

Other 75 8 329 

Refunds  968 -1 328 579 

Total 21074 24 238 920 

 

Top Destinations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Class of Travel 

 

 

 

Top Markets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


